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1. REPORTING ENTITY 
 

- Banan Real Estate Company is A Saudi Joint Stock Company is  registered in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 

under commercial registration numbered 1010207597 on the 24th of Safar 1426 H(Corresponding to 

April 4, 2005 G). 

- Based on the decision of the company’s extraordinary general assembly in its meeting held on 

November 30, 2020 G, the company’s commercial name was modified to become “Banan Real Estate 

Company” instead of “Abdulaziz Saleh Al-Haqbani Sons Company for Real Estate Development and 

Investment”, all legal procedures have been completed and the articles of association and the company's 

commercial register have been amended. 

- The company obtained the approval of the Saudi Market Authority to be listed on the parallel market 

“Nomu” on 18-Dhu al-Qa’dah 1442 H corresponding to 28-06-202 G, and on August 11, 2021G, 

trading in the company’s shares began in the Saudi Market Authority in the parallel market “Nomu” 

under code 9519. 

- The company’s activity represents managing and leasing owned or leased properties (residential and 

non-residential), managing and operating hotel apartments, managing real estate for commission and 

real estate registration services. 

- The registered address of the company is: The intersection of Takhassusi Road with Prince Sultan bin 

Abdulaziz Street - Olaya District - Riyadh - P.O. Box: 42 Riyadh 11411 - Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. 

- The Financial year begins on the first of January of each year and ends on December 31 of the same 

year. 
 

1-1 The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Banan Real 

Estate Company (the “Company”) or (the Parent Company) and its subsidiary, collectively referred to as 

the “Group”. 
 

1-2 On the date December 23, 2021 The Company increased its stake in the ownership of Al-Aziza 

Company for Investment and Real Estate Development from 42.5% to 46.042%. This acquisition 

resulted in some changes in the board of directors of the investee company, and then achieved control 

over Al-Aziza Company for Investment and Real Estate Development by the company, where the 

company became a presence and representation it gives it the authority to direct the relevant activities of 

the investee. (Note 9) 

The subsidiary company is represented as follows: 
 

  Ownership Percentage 

Company Name Country  December 31 

2021 

December 31, 

2020 

Azizah Investment Company 

for Real Estate Development 

Kingdom Saudi Arabia 
46% - % 

 

The subsidiary company also carries out its subsidiary activities through the following branch:- 

Branch name 
Sub record 

number 

Date and place of 

issue 
Activity 

Azizah 

Investment 

Company for 

Real Estate 

Development 

1010630719 Rajab 10, 1441 AH, 

corresponding to 

May 5, 2020 AD.- 

Riyadh 

Buying and selling land and real estate, 

dividing it and off-plan sales activities, 

managing and renting owned or leased 

properties (non-residential), managing and 

renting owned or leased properties (residential) 

Membership Certificate Rent No.EJAR_20053 

expires on 11/23/1444 AH. 
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1-3 The impact of this acquisition was presented on the consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year 

ending on December 31, 2021 (Note No. 10). 
 

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

2-1  Accounting standards applied 

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International 

Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other 

standards and pronouncements that are issued by the Saudi Organization for Chartered and 

Professional Accountants (SOCPA) . 
 

2-2  Accounting convention / Basis of measurement 

These Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting 

and the concept of going concern on the historical cost basis except for the following material items 

in the Consolidated Statement of  financial position: 

 Investment at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (“FVTPL”). 

 Investment at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (“FVOCI”). 

 The defined benefit obligation is recognised at the present value of future obligations using the 

Projected Unit Credit Method. 

 As required by the Capital Market Authority (“CMA”) through its circular dated 16th October 2016 

the Group needs to apply the cost model to measure the property and equipment, investment 

property, and intangible assets upon adopting the IFRS for three years period starting from the 

IFRS adoption date.On 31 December 2019, CMA has examined the suitability of continuing to use 

the cost model or permitting the use of the fair value model or revaluation options and made the 

following decisions: 

- Obligating listed companies to continue to use the cost model to measure Properties (IAS 16) and 

Investment Properties (IAS 40) in the financial statements prepared for financial periods within 

fiscal years, which start before the calendar year 2022; and 

- Allowing listed companies, the policy choice to use the fair value model for investment property 

subsequent to initial measurement or the policy choice to use the revaluation model for property 

(IAS 16) subsequent to initial recognition in the financial statements prepared for financial 

periods within fiscal years starting during the calendar year 2022 or thereafter. 
 

 

2-3  Functional and presentation currency 

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Saudi Riyals (SR) which is the Group’s 

functional currency, unless otherwise indicated. 
 

2-4  Basis for consolidating the consolidated financial statements  

These Consolidated Financial Statements comprising the Consolidated Statement of Financial 

Position, Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss, Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive 

Income, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and 

notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group include assets, liabilities and the results 

of the operations of the Company and its subsidiary, as set out in note (1). The Company and its 

subsidiary are collectively referred to as the “Group”. 

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, 

or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect 

those returns through its power over the entity. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if, and 

only if, the Group has: 

 Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant 

activities of the investee); 

 Exposure to risks, and has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and 

 The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns. 
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Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control. To support this 

presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, 

the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an 

investee, including: 

 The contractual arrangement(s) with the other vote holders of the investee. 

 Rights arising from other contractual arrangements. 

 The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights. 
 

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there 

are changes to one or more of the three elements of control assessing. 

Non-controlling interest are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets 

at the date of acquisition with fair value. 

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of not wholly owned subsidiaries are shown separately 

in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income consolidated statement of 

changes in equity and consolidated statement of financial position, respectively.  

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which group control until the date on which control 

ceases. 
 

The group uses the acquisition method for accounting when transferring control to the group, where: 

 The cost of the acquisition is measured at the fair value of the specific assets acquired. 

  The excess of the cost of acquisition plus the fair value of non-controlling interests over the net 

value of the identifiable assets acquired as goodwill is recorded in the consolidated statement of 

financial position. 

  Acquisition-related costs are recorded when incurred and included in administrative expenses. 
 

NCI is measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the date of 

acquisition. Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the 

equity holders of the Parent Company and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance. 
 

All intra-group assets and liabilities, unrealised income and expenses and cash flows relating to 

transactions are eliminated in full on consolidation. When necessary, adjustments are made to the 

financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group’s accounting 

policies. The Company and its subsidiary have the same reporting periods. 
 

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an 

equity transaction. 
 

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, The following is done: 

 De-recognizes the assets (including the good will)  and liabilities of the subsidiary; 

 De-recognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest; 

 De-recognizes the cumulative translation differences, recorded in equity; 

 Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received; 

 Recognizes the fair value of any investment remaining; 

 Recognizes any surplus or deficit in the consolidated statement of profit or loss; 
 

The parent company's share in the previously listed components of other comprehensive profit is 

reclassified to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate and required when the group eliminates 

the directly related assets or liabilities. 
 

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTI NG POLICIES 
 

3-1  New Standards, Amendment to Standards and Interpretations: 

- The Group has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for their annual 

reporting period commencing 1 January 2021. 
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 Amendments to IFRS 7 and IFRS 16 interest rate benchmark reform – Phase 2 

- The Phase 2 amendments address issues that arise from the implementation of the reforms, 
including the replacement of one benchmark with an alternative one. The Phase 2 amendments 
provide additional temporary reliefs from applying specific IAS 39 and IFRS 9 hedge accounting 
requirements to hedging relationships directly affected by IBOR reform. 

 

 Amendment to IFRS 16, ‘Leases’ – COVID-19 related rent concessions 

- As a result of the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, rent concessions have been granted to 
lessees. In May 2020, the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) published an 
amendment to IFRS 16 that provided an optional practical expedient for lessees from assessing 
whether a rent concession related to COVID-19 is a lease modification. On 31 March 2021, the 
IASB published an additional amendment to extend the date of the practical expedient from 30 
June 2021 to 30 June 2022.  

Lessees can select to account for such rent concessions in the same way as they would if they 

were not lease modifications. In many cases, this will result in accounting for the concession as 

variable lease payments in the period(s) in which the event or condition that triggers the reduced 

payment occurs. 

 The adoption of above amendments does not have any material impact on the Consolidated 

Financial Statements during the year. 
 

 

3-2 Standards issued but not yet effective 

- Following are the new standards and amendments to standards which are effective for annual periods 

beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and earlier application is permitted; however, the Group has not 

early adopted them in preparing these Consolidated Financial Statements. 

 Amendments to IAS 1, ‘Presentation of financial statements’ on classification of liabilities 

These narrow-scope amendments to IAS 1, ‘Presentation of financial statements’, clarify that 

liabilities are classified as either current or non-current, depending on the rights that exist at the end 

of the reporting period. Classification is unaffected by the expectations of the entity or events after 

the reporting date (for example, the receipt of a waiver or a breach of covenant). The amendment 

also clarifies what IAS 1 means when it refers to the ‘settlement’ of a liability. 

 Amendments to IFRS 3, IAS 16, IAS 37 

- IFRS 3, ‘Business combinations’ update a reference in IFRS 3 to the Conceptual Framework for 

Financial Reporting without changing the accounting requirements for business combinations. 

- IAS 16, ‘Property, plant and equipment’ prohibit a company from deducting from the cost of property, 

plant and equipment amounts received from selling items produced while the company is preparing the 

asset for its intended use. Instead, a company will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in 

profit or loss. 

- IAS 37, ‘Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets’ specify which costs a company 

includes when assessing whether a contract will be loss-making. 

 Amendments to IAS 1, Practice statement 2 and IAS 8 

The amendments aim to improve accounting policy disclosures and to help users of the financial 

statements to distinguish between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting 

policies. 
 

 Amendment to IAS 12 – deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single 

transaction 

These amendments require companies to recognise deferred tax on transactions that, on initial 

recognition give rise to equal amounts of taxable and deductible temporary differences. 
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4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED 

- The following are the significant accounting policies applied by the Group in preparing its consolidated 

financial statements to all accounting periods presented. 
 

4.1 CLASSIFICATION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES INTO CURRENT / NON-CURRENT 

Assets: 

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the financial statements based on their classification 

into current / noncurrent items. The asset is current when: 

 It is expected to be realized or there is an intention to be sold or consumed it in a normal 

operating cycle, or 

 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading, or 

 It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the financial reporting’s period, or  

 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for 

at least – twelve months after the financial reporting period. 

The group classifies all other assets as non-current assets. 
 

Liabilities: 

A liability is current when: 

 It is expected to be settled in a normal operating cycle, or 

 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading, or 

 It is due to be settled within twelve months after the financial reporting period, or 

 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve 

months after the financial reporting period. 

The group classifies all other liabilities as non-current assets. 
 

 

4.2 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

For the purpose of preparing the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of 

balances with banks, cash on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturities of three 

months or less and other short-term highly liquid investments, if any, whose original maturity is 

three months or Less than the date of its creation and are available to the Group without any 

restrictions. It also includes overdraft accounts that are an integral part of the Group's cash 

management and are expected to be changed from overdrafts to current accounts. 
 
 

4.3 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES 

Associate companies are those companies over which the company exercises significant and 

significant influence. Significant influence is the Company's ability to participate in the financial 

and operating decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies. 

• A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the company has joint control of that arrangement 

and has a right to the net assets of the joint arrangement. 

• Joint control is a jointly controlled contractual arrangement that exists when decisions about 

activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. The considerations in 

determining significant influence and joint control are retaining, directly or indirectly, a 

percentage of the voting power of the investee, representation on the board of directors or similar 

governance bodies of the investee, participation in policy-making, including participation in 

decisions relating to Dividends or other distributions, material transactions between the company 

and the investee, the exchange of administrative personnel or the provision of basic technical 

information. 

The Group's investment in the associate or joint venture is accounted for using the equity method. 

• According to the equity method, the investment in the associate or joint venture is initially 

recorded at cost in the statement of financial position and this cost is subsequently adjusted to 

recognize the company's share in profits or losses and other comprehensive income of the 

associate or joint venture minus any decrease in the value of the net investment. 
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• When the Company's share of losses in the associate or joint venture exceeds its ownership in the 

associate or joint venture (which includes any long-term equity interests that substantially form 

part of the Company's net investment in the associate or joint venture), the Company stops 

recognizing its share of the additional losses . Additional losses are recognized and recognized as 

liabilities only to the extent that the Company has legal or contractual obligations or has made 

payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture. 

• If, in a subsequent period, the associate or joint venture records profits, the Group shall resume 

recording its share of such profits only when its share of profits equals its share of unrecognized 

losses. 

The company's investment in the associate or joint venture is accounted for using the equity 

method, starting from the date on which the investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. 

• Upon acquiring the investment in the associate or joint venture, any excess of the investment cost 

over the company's share in the net fair value of the identified assets and liabilities of the investee 

is recorded as goodwill and included in the carrying value of the investment, and is not amortized 

or tested in its value independently. 

• Any excess of the Company's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of 

the associate or joint venture over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recorded 

directly in the statement of profit or loss in the year in which the investment is acquired. 

• The Company discontinues using the equity method from the date the investment ceases to be an 

associate or joint venture, or when the investment is designated as held for sale. In this case, the 

investment is recorded at fair value, and any difference between the carrying value of the associate 

or joint venture and the fair value after it is converted to investment and the disposal proceeds are 

recognized in the income statement. 

• When the company reduces its interest in an associate or a joint venture and the company 

continues to apply the equity method, the company must reclassify the gain and loss previously 

recognized in other comprehensive income and related to that decrease in the statement of profit 

and loss, if this classification is for profit and loss. Includes derecognition of related assets or 

liabilities. 

• After applying the equity method, the company determines, on the date of preparing the financial 

statements, the extent to which there is objective evidence of a decline in the value of the 

investment in an associate or a joint venture. In the case of such evidence, the company estimates 

the recoverable amount of the investment value. The recoverable amount of the investment value 

is the fair value of the investment or the cash-generating unit less costs to sell the investment or its 

value in use - whichever is higher. 

- Unrealized gains or losses resulting from transactions between the company and the associate or 

joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the company's interest in the associate or joint venture. 

The company's share in the results of the associate or joint venture is presented in the income 

statement after operating profits or losses 

The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same financial 

period as the company. Adjustments are made, if necessary, to bring the accounting policies of the 

associate or joint venture into line with the company's accounting policies. 
 

 

4.4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT   

Recognition and measurement  

- Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 

impairment losses, if any. The cost of acquisition of the asset includes all costs related to the 

acquisition of the asset. 

- An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized when it is disposal or no future 

economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. 

- Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by 

comparing net disposal proceeds with the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment 

and are recognized net of other income (expense) in profits or losses. 
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- Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it results in increase in the future economic 

benefits and can be reliably measured. 

- Loan financing costs are capitalized to finance the creation of qualifying assets during the year 

required to complete and process the assets for the purpose. 

- Where significant portions of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they 

are then accounted for as  items of property, plant and equipment. 

- The cost of replacing an important part of the item of property, plant and equipment is 

recognized in the carrying amount of the item if potential future economic benefits are 

probable to flow to the Group and these costs can be measured reliably. The carrying amount 

of the item being derecognized is eliminated when significant parts of the property, plant and 

equipment are required to be replaced over time. The Group recognizes such items as 

individual assets with specific useful lives and is depreciated accordingly. Similarly, when 

performing a major examination, its cost is included in the carrying amount of the property and 

equipment as a replacement if the inclusion criteria are met. Other repair and maintenance 

costs are included in the profits or losses as incurred. 
 

Depreciation  

- The cost less estimated residual value is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the useful 

lives of the assets, the depreciation of some production line is made on the basis of the amount 

produced during the period attributable to the amount estimate to produce the asset during its 

useful live and for the remaining property and plant and equipment, the depreciation is made 

on the basis of the useful live of the asset as follows. 

Items Useful life 

Buildings 40 years 

Electrical appliances and air conditioning 10 years 

Vehicles 4 years 

Computers 4 years 

Furniture and fixtures 10 years 

Tools 7:8 years 

Building improvements 4 years 

Land and capital work in progress are not depreciated. 
 

- The residual value and useful lives of the asset are reviewed in case there are indications of 

significant changes since the date of the last annual report and adjusted for future impact, when 

necessary. 
 

Capital works in progress 

- Capital work in progress at the end of the year includes certain assets that have been acquired 

but are not ready for the intended use. Capital work is carried at cost less any impairment 

recorded in value. These assets are transferred to related asset classes and depreciated when 

they are ready for use. 
 

 

4.5 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

- Intangible assets (excluding goodwill) acquired separately are measured on initial recognition 

at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated 

amortization and impairment losses, if any. 

- The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either specific or indefinite. 

- Assets produced internally (excluding capitalized development costs) are not capitalized and 

related expenses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are 

incurred. 
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- Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortized over the useful economic life, as 

following: 

Item useful life 

programs 4-6 year 
 

- The residual values of intangible assets with finite lives, their useful lives and impairment 

indicators at the end of each financial year are reviewed for impairment if there is an indication 

that the intangible asset may have been impaired. 

 Changes in the expected useful life or expected pattern of future economic benefits embodied 

in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, 

and are treated as changes in accounting estimates and adjusted prospectively, if necessary. 

 Amortization expense for intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of 

profit or loss and other comprehensive income under expenses category in line with the 

function of intangible assets. 

- Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when the future economic benefits associated with 

the expenditure are likely to flow to the Group and the expenditure can be measured reliably. 

- Gains or losses arising on de recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference 

between net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are included in the 

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when the asset is disposed of. 
 

4.6 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 

- Investment properties are properties that are acquired for the purposes of earning rental income 

or capital development or both, in addition to those that are acquired for unspecified future uses 

as investment properties but not for the purpose of selling within the normal business cycle and 

uses in the field of production or supply of goods or services for administrative purposes . 

- - Investment properties are measured at cost after deducting accumulated depreciation and any 

impairment losses, if any. 

- - Investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 

the related assets. Its useful life ranges from 20 years to 40 years. Land and capital work in 

progress are not depreciated. 

- - Investment properties are disposed of either when they are sold or permanently withdrawn 

from use and no future economic benefits are expected. The gains and losses on disposal are 

determined by comparing the net disposal proceeds with the carrying value and are recognized 

net within other income (expenses) in the statement of profit or loss. 

- - Real estate is transferred from investment properties to property and equipment only when 

there is a change in use. Classification must be done when there is evidence that a change in 

use occurs and not merely a change in management's intentions. Such transfers are made 

according to the carrying value of the real estate on the date of the transfer. 

- The residual value and useful lives of investment properties and indicators of impairment are 

reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted prospectively, when needed. During the 

year 2020, the Company modified the useful life of investment properties, as they changed 

from 20 years to 40 years, according to the remaining ages of those properties based on the 

opinions of specialized real estate evaluators, and this change was accounted for as a change in 

accounting estimates, which affects the current and future periods. 

- - Regular maintenance and repair expenses that do not materially increase the estimated useful 

life of the asset are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when incurred. 
 

 

4.7 BORROWING COSTS 

- Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the 

borrowing of funds. 
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- Borrowing costs directly attributable to the establishment of an asset are capitalized using the 

capitalization rate up to the stage in which the work necessary to prepare the qualifying asset 

for the intended purpose is effectively completed and are then charged to profit or loss. In the 

case of specific loans, all such costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or 

production of an asset that require a substantial period of time for its intended preparation or 

sale, such costs are capitalized as part of the cost of the related asset. All other borrowing costs 

are expensed in the period in which they occur. 
 

 

4.8 LEASES 

The determination of whether the arrangements are (or its substance) is a lease based on the 

substance of the agreement of the beginning of the contract. An arrangement is assessed to 

determination whether its performance depends on the user of assets or that the arrangements 

transfer the right to use the asset even if the asset is not explicitly identified in the arrangement. 
 

The Group as a lessee 

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability related to the lease 

contracts which the requirements of IFRS (16) apply where: 

- Each a rental payment is distributed between the liabilities and the finance cost. 

- The finance cost is charged to profit and loss over a lease term where be achieved a static 

periodical commission rate on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. 

- The right of use assets was amortized with the cost that involving the following: 

 The amount of initial measurement for lease liabilities. 

 Any lease payments which were paid at or before the commencement date of the contract 

less any received rental incentives. 

 The costs of renewal. (if any) 

- The lease liabilities comprise the following net present values of payments: 

 The fixed payments (including the fixed payments in its substance) less any debit 

incentives. 

  The variable lease payments which based on an indicator or rate. (if any) 

 The amounts which expected to be paid pursuant to the guarantees of the residual value. 

 The price of exercising of the option of purchasing if a lessee sure reasonably from 

exercise that option if any. 

 Payments of the fines related to terminate a lease contract, if the lease term reflects 

reasonably of exercising the lessee for that option (if any). 

- The payments of a lease contract are discounted by using an incremental borrowing rate 

which represents the price that would pay by the lessee to borrow the necessary funds to 

obtain an asset in a similar value in a similar economic environment with similar conditions 

and terms. 

- The payments related to short-term leases and low-value leases are recognised as an expense 

in profit and loss. The short-term leases are the leases that have a lease period 12month or 

less. 

- Renegotiation on the lease contract's terms is made on an individual basis and contains a 

large of conditions and different terms. The arrangements of the lease contracts do not 

impose any pledges but the right-of-use assets do not use as a guarantee for the purposes of 

borrowing. 

- There is no impact on the group to apply IFRS 16, as the lease contracts in the group are 

considered short-term lease contracts with lease periods of 12 months or less. 
 

The Group as a lessor 

- The determination of whether the agreements are (or its substance) is a lease based on the 

substance of the agreement of the beginning of the contract. 
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- Each lease (if any) are classified as a finance lease or an operating lease, where the regard of 

a lease is a finance lease or an operating lease depends on the substance of a transaction, not 

on the form of the contract. 

- A lease is classified as a finance lease if a lease that transfers substantially all the risks and 

rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. 

- A lease is classified as an operating lease that does not transfer substantially all the risks and 

rewards incidental to the owner ship of an underlying asset. 

- The lease incentives or any increase in the lease contracts are included as part of the total 

liability from the lease contract and are calculated on a straight line basis over the period of 

the contract. Contingent rentals are included as revenue in the period in which they are 

calculated. 
 
 

4.9 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS 

 At each reporting date, the Group reviews non-financial assets (other than inventories) to 

determine whether there is any indication or circumstances that indicate an impairment loss or 

reversal of impairment loss. If this indicator exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is 

estimated to determine the extent of the impairment loss or reversal of the impairment loss, if 

any. 

 When over it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the group 

estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a 

reasonable and consistent basis for allocation can be determined, the joint assets are allocated to 

individual cash-generating units or otherwise distributed to the smaller group of cash-generating 

units for which a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be determined. 

 The recoverable amount of the asset is the fair value of the asset or cash generating unit less 

costs to sell or value in use - whichever is higher, 

 The recoverable amount of an individual asset is determined unless the asset generates cash 

flows that are substantially independent of the expenditure generated from other assets or 

groups of assets.  

 When the carrying amount of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, 

the asset is considered impaired and its value is reduced to its recoverable amount. 

 In assessing the value in use, estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value 

using the pre-tax discount rate, reflecting current market assessments of the time value of 

money and the specific risks of assets for which future cash flow estimates have not been 

adjusted. 

 When determining the fair value less costs to complete the sale, recent market transactions 

are taken into consideration and, if such transactions can’t be identified, an appropriate 

valuation model is used. 

 An impairment loss is recognized directly in profits or losses unless the relevant assets are 

carried at their revaluated amount. The impairment loss is treated in this case as a revaluation 

decrease. 

 Where the impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-

generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount so that the carrying 

amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had the 

impairment loss been recognized value of assets (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. An 

impairment loss is recognized directly in the profits or losses unless the relevant assets are 

carried at their revaluated amount. The impairment loss is recognized in this case as an increase 

arising from revaluation. 

 Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets that are not available for use 

after being reviewed for impairment at least annually and whenever there is an indication of 

impairment. 
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4.10 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT  

- Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 

measurement is based on the assumption that the transaction for to sell the asset or transfer the 

liability take place either: 

 Through the principal market of the asset or liability, or  

 Through the market most beneficial to the asset or liability in the absence of a principal 

market. 

- The principal market or market must be the most accessible by the group.  

- The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions used by market 

participants when pricing the asset or liability on the assumption that the parties in the market act 

in the best economic interest. 

- The measurement of the fair value of a non-financial asset takes in consideration the ability of the 

parties in the market to provide economic benefits by using the asset to obtain the best benefit from 

it or to sell it to another party in the market for the best benefit. 

- The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate to the circumstances and have sufficient 

data to measure fair value, maximize the use of observable data and reduce the use of non-

observable related data, where: 

 The responsibility to supervise all important fair value measurements is the responsibility of 

management, including the third level of fair values. 

 The management reviews significant non-observable inputs and valuation adjustments 

periodically. 

 The management evaluates the evidence obtained from a third party to support the conclusion 

that these valuations meet the requirements of the IFRS adopted in Saudi Arabia, including 

the level in the hierarchy of fair value for which such assessments should be classified if 

information is used by a third party, such as brokers' prices or pricing services, are used to 

measure fair values. 

- The Group uses observable market data to the extent possible when measuring the fair value of an 

asset or liability. The fair values are classified at different levels in the fair value hierarchy based 

on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows: 

 Level 1 : Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities  

 Level 2 : Inputs other than prices listed in level 1 for identical assets and liabilities that could 

be observed for the assets or liabilities other than direct or indirect ( as derivate of the price of 

the adjustment) 

 Level 3: Inputs for assets and liabilities that are not based on observable market data 

(unobservable input and inactive market)  

- If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability are at different levels of the fair 

value hierarchy, the fair value measurement is fully classified at the same level of the fair value 

hierarchy as the lowest level of inputs is essential for full measurement. 

- Transfers are recognized between the levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting 

period in which the change occurs. 
 

 

4.11 STATUARY RESERVE 

- - According to the company’s articles of association and the Companies Law in the Kingdom 

of Saudi Arabia, the company is required to transfer 10% of its net income to a legal reserve 

until this reserve reaches 30% of its capital. 

- - This legal reserve is not available for distribution to shareholders. However, it can be used to 

cover a company's losses or increase its capital. 
 
 
 
 
 



BANAN REAL ESTATE COMPANY 
 (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) 
 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended December 31, 2021  

(Expressed in Saudi Riyal unless otherwise stated) 

- 17 - 

 

4.12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  

- Financial instruments are recognized and measured in accordance with the requirements of 

IFRS (9) "Financial Instruments", which defines and addresses the classification, measurement 

and de-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities and certain contracts for the 

purchase or sale of non-financial items. The details of the relevant accounting policies are set 

out below. 

- Initial recognition – financial assets and financial liabilities  

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the entity becomes a party to the 

contractual of the instrument. 

 Initial measurement 

On initial measurement, except for trade receivables that do not include a material financing 

component, the financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss. The transaction 

costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset are recognized in profit or 

loss. 

If the financial asset is not at fair value through profit or loss, the financial asset is measured at 

its fair value plus transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 

Trade receivables that do not have a material financing component or which are less than 12 

months old are measured at the transaction price in accordance with IFRS (15). 

 Classification and subsequent measurement 

The subsequent measurement of non-derivative financial assets depends on their classification 

into the following measurement categories based on the business model in which the financial 

assets are managed as well as the contractual terms of cash flows: 
 

A) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 

Financial assets at fair value through statement of profit or loss are measured at the end of each 

reporting period without any transaction costs that the Group may incur when selling or 

disposing of any financial asset in the future. 

All financial assets that are not classified as measured at amortized cost or at fair value through 

other comprehensive income and will  be described below are measured at fair value through 

profit or loss. This includes all other derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the 

Group is entitled to finalize financial assets that otherwise meet the measurement requirements 

at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income as financial assets at fair 

value through profit or loss. 

If the Group does so, it omits the accounting mismatch that may arise in one way or another or 

significantly reduces mismatches. 
 

B) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income: 

They are either (debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income) or (equity 

instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income) 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are measured at the end of 

each reporting period and the transaction costs incurred by the Group are derecognized when 

the asset is disposed of in the future. 

Investments in debt instruments are measured at fair value through other comprehensive 

income if the following two conditions are met and are not measured at fair value through 

profit or loss: 

 It is maintained within a business model that is verified by collecting contractual cash flows 

and selling financial assets. And 

 Their contractual periods are established on specific cash flow dates that represent only 

payments of principal and interest on the principal of the amount outstanding. 

Upon derecognition of financial assets, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in 

other comprehensive income is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss. However, the fair 

value gains or losses are not reclassified to profit or loss in the case of equity instruments. 
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C) Financial assets measured at amortized cost: 

The financial asset should be measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method if 

the following conditions are met: 

1) The financial asset is retained within the business model, which is intended to hold financial 

assets from the collection of contractual cash flows;  and 

2) The contractual terms of the financial asset on specific dates result in cash flows that are 

principal and interest payments on the principal outstanding.     

Financial assets measured at amortized cost include trade and other receivables.  

After initial measurement, these financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost 

using the effective interest rate method less impairment (if any). Amortized cost is calculated 

by taking into consideration any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are 

an integral part of the effective interest rate. Effective interest rate amortization is included in 

financing revenue in profit or loss. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. 
 

The method of recognizing and presenting the profits or losses resulting from classifying 

the above categories is as follows: 
 

Measurement class Recognizing and presenting the profits or losses 

Financial assets at 

amortized cost 
- The following items are included in statement of profit or loss: 

 Interest income using the effective interest rate method. 

 Expected credit losses (or reversal of losses) (impairment and 

reversal) 

 Foreign exchange gains or losses 

- When the financial asset is  derecognized (Derecognition), the 

resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss. 

Debt instruments at 

fair value through 

other 

comprehensive 

income 

- Gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income 

except for the following items which are recognized in profit or 

loss in the same manner as for financial assets measured at 

amortized cost: 

 Interest income using the effective interest method. 

 Expected credit losses (or reversal of losses). (Impairment and 

reversal) 

 Foreign exchange gains or losses 

- When the financial asset is de-recognized (Derecognition),  the 

cumulative gain or loss in the other comprehensive income is 

reclassified to profit or loss 

Investment in equity 

instruments at fair 

value through other 

comprehensive 

income 

- Gains or losses are recognized in other comprehensive income 

- Dividends from these investments must be recognized as income in 

profit or loss unless they clearly represent the payment of part of the 

cost of the investment. 

- The amounts recognized in other comprehensive income are not 

reclassified to profit or loss under any circumstances. 

Investment at fair 

value through profit 

or loss 

- Gains or losses arising either from subsequent measurement or from 

de-recognition are recognized in profit or loss. 

 

 Reclassification 

When _and only when _ an entity changes its business model in the managing of financial 

assets, it must reclassify all its affected financial assets in accordance with the above 

classification requirements. 
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 Cancellation of recognition of financial assets 

The de-recognition of a financial asset (or, as appropriate, a part of a financial asset or a part of 

a group of similar financial assets) (which mean its disposal from the financial position 

statement) when the cash flow rights commented of the asset is done or when the financial asset 

is transfer the financial assets or all its risks and benefits to another party. The difference in 

carrying amount is recognized in the profit or loss. 

 Impairment of financial assets 

At each reporting date, the Group assesses the probability of objective evidence that the 

financial asset measured at cost or amortized cost may be impaired. Impairment arises when 

one or more events occur, if the initial recognition of an asset has an impact on the estimated 

future cash flows of a financial asset or a group of financial assets that can be reliably 

measured. 

IFRS (9) requires the Group to apply a model to measure expected credit losses in respect of 

impairment of financial assets. Credit event occurrence is not necessary to include credit 

losses. Instead, using the expected credit loss model, the entity calculates the expected credit 

losses and changes as of each reporting date. 

The expected credit loss should be measured and made a provision to it either in the amount 

equivalent to: 

(a) 12 months of expected losses or  

(b) Long term expected losses. 

 If the credit risk of the financial instrument is not substantially increased from the beginning, 

then a provision equal to the expected loss of 12 months is created. 

 In other cases, provision should be made for long-term credit losses. 

For trade receivables and other receivables, the Group has applied the simplified method in 

accordance with the Standard and calculates credit losses according to credit loss forecasts over 

the life of the financial assets where: 

 The Group has established a matrix of provisions based on the Group's past experience with 

respect to credit losses, and adjusted for future factors relating to debtors and the economic 

environment. 

 Impairment losses relating to trade receivables are presented separately in profit or loss. 

Except for investments in debt instruments measured through other comprehensive income, the 

carrying value of the asset is reduced through the use of the provision account and the amount of 

the loss is recognized in profit or loss. Interest income continues to be depreciated using the 

interest rate used to discount future cash flows to measure impairment loss. Loans are written off 

with the loan-related provision when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all 

guarantees are realized or transferred to the Group. 

 In respect of investments in debt instruments measured through other comprehensive income, 

the provision for the loss of other comprehensive income accumulated in the investment 

revaluation reserve is recognized and does not reduce the carrying value of the financial asset in 

the statement of financial position. 

 In any case, if in a subsequent year, the amount of the impairment loss increased or decreased 

because of an event occurring after the impairment was recorded, the previously recognized 

impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the provision account. If a subsequent 

write-down is reversed, the reversal is recognized in profit or loss. 
 

Financial liabilities 

The Group's financial liabilities include accounts payables and accruals amount. 

 Initial measurement 

Financial liabilities are initially recognized as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 

loss and other comprehensive income and as loans, advances and payables as appropriate. 
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All financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and in the case of long-term loans, 

advances and accounts payable, net of direct costs related to the transaction. (I.e. except for 

financial liabilities at fair value where transaction costs directly related to the acquisition of 

financial liabilities are recognized directly in profit or loss). 
 

 Classification and subsequent measurement 

A) At amortized cost 

The entity must classify all financial liabilities at amortized cost and subsequently measured, 

except for: 

1) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. 

2) Financial liabilities that arise when a financial asset that is unqualified for 

 de-recognition is derecognized or when the method of continuing involvement is applied 

(the continuing correlation method). 

3) Financial guarantee contracts. 

4) Obligations or commitments to provide a loan at an interest rate lower than the market 

price and not measured at fair value through profit or loss. 

5) The potential price (consideration) recognized by the acquirer in a business combination 

that is in accordance with IFRS (3). This potential price is subsequently measured at fair 

value with changes recognized in profit or loss. 
 

All financial liabilities of the Group are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 

effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss and other 

comprehensive income when the liability is derecognized through the amortization of the 

effective interest rate. 

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into consideration any discount or premium on 

acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate method. 

Effective interest rate amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit or 

loss. 

Gains or losses on financial liabilities measured at fair value (which are not part of the 

overall hedging relationship) are recognized in profit or loss. Except for gains or losses on 

certain financial liabilities that are designated at fair value through profit or loss when the 

Group is required to assess the effects of changes in credit risk associated with liabilities in 

other comprehensive income. 
 

B) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial liabilities included in this category include: 

1. Liabilities held for trading. 

2. Liabilities derivatives not designated as hedging instruments. 

3. Liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss. 

After initial recognition, the Group measures financial liabilities at fair value and recognizes 

changes in profit or loss. 

Usually Gains and losses on financial liabilities designated at fair value are recognized in 

profit or loss as follows: 

1.  The amount of the change in the fair value of a financial liability that is attributable to 

changes in credit risk is recognized in other comprehensive income. 

2.  The residual value of the change in the fair value of the financial liability is recognized in 

profit or loss. 
 

C) Financial liabilities other than financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate. 

 Reclassification 

The Group cannot reclassify any financial liability. 
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 Derecognition of financial liabilities 

A financial liability is de-recognized when it is fulfill, cancelled or terminated. When an 

existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 

different terms or when the terms of an existing obligation are substantially modified, 

such a replacement or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original financial 

liability while recognizing the new obligation. The difference between the relevant 

carrying values is recognized in profit or loss. 

 Set-off of financial instruments (set-off between financial assets and liabilities). 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and recorded net in the statement of 

financial position only when the following conditions are met: 

1- The Group has a statutory legal right to set-off the amounts recognized in assets and 

liabilities. 

2- The intention of the Group to settle on a net basis or to recognize the asset and settle 

the obligation simultaneously.   
 

4.13 REVENUES RECOGNITION  

- Revenues arising from contracts are recognized and measured in accordance with the 

requirements of IFRS (15), unless they are within the scope of other standards. 

- Revenue is measured on the basis of the compensation specified in the contract with the 

customer, with the exception of amounts collected on behalf of other parties. The Group 

recognizes revenue when transferring control over the products or services provided to the 

customer. 

- IFRS 15 is applied either with full retrospective or amended application where: 

- The Group applied the International Financial Reporting Standard in its financial 

statements starting from 1 January 2019 in a way that assesses the cumulative effect, and 

the Group did not amend its financial statements for the presented comparative periods in 

accordance with the exemptions available. 

- Where the Group records revenue from contracts with clients based on the following five 

steps: 

a) Determining the contract with the client: A contract is an agreement between two or 

more parties that results in mandatory rights and obligations and clarifies the criteria 

that must be met for each contract. 

b) Defining performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a 

promise to the customer according to the contract in order to transport goods or 

provide services to the customer. 

c) Determining the transaction price: The transaction price is the price expected from the 

Group in exchange for the transfer of goods or services agreed upon with the customer, 

excluding the amounts collected on behalf of third parties. 

d) Distributing the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a 

contract that contains more than one performance obligation, the Group distributes the 

transaction price to each performance obligation by an estimated amount of the price 

expected to be collected from the goods or services in exchange for the performance of 

the performance obligation. 

e) Revenue is recognized when (or when) the Group fulfills the performance obligation. 

- The Group fulfills the performance obligation and recognizes revenue over the term of the 

contract if it fulfills any of the following requirements: 

a) The client obtains the benefits resulting from the performance of the Group and the 

consumption of those benefits at the same time, or 

b) The Group's performance leads to the creation or improvement of an asset that is under 

the customer's control at the time of improvement or creation, or 
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c) The Group's performance of the obligation is not originally for other uses of the Group, 

and the Group has the right to collect the amount for the completed performance to date 

that is enforceable. 

- For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is 

recognized at the time the performance obligation is satisfied. 

- When the Group fulfills a performance obligation by providing the promised goods or 

services, then the Group creates an asset based on the contract in exchange for the price it 

received as a result of the performance. If the amount of the billed price to the customer 

exceeds the amount of the listed revenues, this increases the commitment of the contract. 

- Revenue is measured at the fair value of the price received or receivable, taking into 

account the contractual payment terms specified. 

- Revenue is included in profit or loss to the extent of the expected flow of economic benefits 

to the Group, with revenues and costs - where applicable - being able to be measured 

reliably. 

- The Group's revenue is represented in: 
 

 Rental revenue 

Revenue is recognized in accordance with the above and rental income from operating 

leases is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the related lease. The initial 

direct costs or incentives incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are 

added and considered as an integral part of the carrying amount of the leased contract 

and included on a straight line basis over the term of the lease. 
 

4.14 EXPENSES 

- Selling and marketing expenses and general and administrative expenses include direct and 

indirect costs that are not specifically considered part of the cost of revenues . 

- Selling and marketing expenses in those expenses arising from the Group's underlying 

sales and marketing functions . 

- All expenses except for financial charges, amortization, depreciation and impairment losses 

are classified as general and administrative expenses . 

- Other joint expenses are allocated between the cost of revenue, selling and marketing costs 

and general and administrative expenses on a consistent basis where necessary. 
 

 

4.15 INCOME TAX AND ZAKAT 

 Zakat  

- Zakat is calculated in accordance with zakat regulations issued by the General Authority 

for Zakat and Income in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia ("the Authority" .  

- Zakat is charged to the profit or loss. 

- Any additional obligations and settlement of adjustments resulting from the Zakat, if any, 

that may become due upon completion of the assessment are recorded in the same fiscal 

year in which the zakat assessment is recognized. 
 

Withholding tax 

- The Group deducts taxes on certain transactions with non-resident entities in Saudi Arabia 

as required in accordance with the applicable tax regulations in the Kingdom of Saudi 

Arabia. The withholding tax relating to foreign payments is recognized as a liability. 
 

Transaction tax 

1- Income, expenses and assets are recognized net of transaction tax (including VAT), except 

for: 



BANAN REAL ESTATE COMPANY 
 (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) 
 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the year ended December 31, 2021  

(Expressed in Saudi Riyal unless otherwise stated) 

- 23 - 

 

 Where the transaction tax incurred in the purchase of an asset or service is not 

recoverable from the tax authority, in which case the transaction tax is recognized as 

part of the cost of the asset or as part of the expense, where applicable،  

 Accounts receivable and payables that have been included with the transaction tax 

amount.  

2- The net amount of the transaction tax recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority is 

included as part of the receivables or payables in the statement of financial position. 
 

 

4.16 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 

A. Foreign currency transactions are translated into Saudi Riyals (functional currency) at the 

rates of exchange ruling at the date of the financial statements. Gains and losses arising from 

changes in exchange rates are recognized in profit or loss. 
 

B. Non-monetary items that are measured at the historical cost of a foreign currency are 

retranslated using the exchange rates at the date of the initial transactions and are not 

subsequently adjusted. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign 

currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date that the fair value was 

determined. The gain or loss arising on the translation of non-monetary items measured at 

fair value is accounted for in accordance with the recognition of profit or loss from changes 

in the fair value of the related item. 
 
 

4.17 PROVISIONS  

A. Provisions are recognized when the Group has an obligation (legal or constructive) arising 

from a past event and there is a possibility that the Group will be required to settle this 

obligation through cash flows from outside the Group that reflect economic benefits and a 

significant estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Where the Group expects 

to repay some or all of the provision - for example - under an insurance contract, the 

payment is recognized as an independent asset but only when the payment is actually 

confirmed. The expense for the provision is presented in to profit or loss after any payment. 

B. If the effect of the time value of money is significant, the provisions  is determined by 

discounting the expected future cash flows at the current discount rate before the tax that 

reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks related to the 

obligation. When the discount is used, the excess of the provision is recognized as a result of 

the passage of time as the cost of financing in the profit or loss. 

C. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best 

estimate. If a flow of required external resources with economic benefits to settle the 

obligation is no longer probable, the provision is reversed. 

D. Cessation of operations costs (assets related to the removal of assets) 

A provision to suspend operations is recognized when the Group is responsible for the 

restoration or rehabilitation of the land. The degree of suspension of the required operations 

and related costs depends on the requirements of current laws and regulations. 

Costs included and included in the provision include all expected cessation liabilities over 

the life of the assets. The provision for suspending operations is discounted to its present 

value and capitalized as part of the assets under property, plant and equipment and is 

amortized over the life of the asset. 

Adjustments to the estimated amount and time of cash flows to discontinue operations are 

normal in light of the significant judgments and estimates involved. These adjustments are 

recorded as an increase in liabilities offset by an increase in the related assets. Factors 

affecting these adjustments include: 
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 Technology development. 

 Regulatory requirements and environmental management strategies. 

 Changes in the estimated threshold and expected costs of activities, including the 

effects of inflation. 

 Changes in economic sustainability. 
 

 

4.18 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
 

A. Defined Benefit Programs  

 The Group provides a defined benefit plan to its employees in accordance with the Saudi 

Labor Law. The Group's net liability in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by 

estimating and deducting the amount of future benefits acquired by the employee in the 

current and prior periods. The defined benefit obligations are calculated annually by a 

qualified actuary by the projected unit credit method, which takes into account the provisions 

of the Saudi Labor Law and Group policy. 

 The defined benefit obligation is periodically re-measured by independent actuaries using the 

projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is 

determined by deducting estimated future cash outflows and due to the lack of a deep market 

for government bonds / skunk or corporate bonds / skunk in Saudi Arabia, the discount rate 

is determined by reference to the Dow Jones Skunk Dividend. The net commission cost is 

calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of defined benefit obligation and 

the fair value of the program assets. 

 The defined benefit obligation costs are calculated using actuarially defined retirement costs 

at the end of the previous year, adjusted for significant market fluctuations and any 

significant one-time events such as program adjustment, manpower reduction and 

reimbursement. In the absence of such significant market fluctuations and one-time events, 

the actuarial liability is extended based on the assumptions at the beginning of the year. If 

there are significant changes in assumptions or arrangements during the initial period, they 

are considered for re-measurement of these liabilities and related costs. 

 Re-measurement of the net liability of defined benefit schemes consisting of actuarial gains 

and losses is recognized directly in other comprehensive income. The Group calculates net 

interest by applying the discount rate used to measure the net defined benefit obligation or 

asset. Net interest expense and other related expenses are recognized in the profit or loss 

programs as defined in the profit or loss. 

 When the benefits of a program change or when the duration of the program is reduced, the 

resulting change in benefit relating to the past service, profit or loss from the immediate 

reduction in profit or loss is recognized. 
 

B. Short-term employee benefits  

A liability is recognized for benefits to employees relating to wages and salaries including non-

monetary benefits, annual leave, sick leave and travel tickets during the period in which the 

service is provided, as well as the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid for 

that service on the basis that the related service may Performed. Recognized liabilities relating to 

short-term employee benefits are measured at the amount that is not deductible and is expected to 

be paid for the service rendered. 
 

C. Employee benefits after end of service 

The Group pays retirement contributions to its Saudi employees to the Social Insurance 

Institution and represents a specific contribution plan and the payments are considered as 

expenses when incurred. 
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4.19 LIABILITIES AND  CONTINGENT ASSETS 

A. Contingent liabilities are obligations that are likely to arise from past events and are 

confirmed to exist only through the occurrence or absence of one or more uncertain future 

events that are not within the overall control of the Group. or an existing obligation that is 

not proved because it is unlikely that there will be a need for the flow of resources to settle 

the obligation. In the event that the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably 

enough, the Group does not demonstrate the contingent liabilities but discloses them in the 

financial statements. 
 

B. The potential assets are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed when 

economic benefits are probable. 
 

 

4.20 EARNINGS PER SHARE 

- Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net income attributable to the Group's 

shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. 

- Reduced earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the group's 

shareholders (after adjusting for interest on convertible preference shares) by the weighted 

average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average 

number of ordinary shares that will be issued when converting all potential reduced ordinary 

shares into shares normal. 

- Since the Group does not have any convertible shares, the basic earnings per share equals the 

reduced earnings per share. 
 

 

4.21 CASH DIVIDENDS OF THE GROUP'S SHAREHOLDERS 

- The Company recognizes the obligations related to the payment of cash dividends to the 

Company's shareholders when the distribution is approved. 

- In accordance with the Companies Law in Saudi Arabia, dividends are approved by the 

shareholders. 

- According to the company’s articles of association, based on the proposal of the board of 

directors and the approval of the general assembly, it is permissible to distribute interim 

profits (quarterly or midyear), and the ordinary general assembly may authorize the board of 

directors to distribute interim profits (quarterly or midyear) provided that this distribution is 

from the real profits that can be distributed . 
 
 

4.22 PREPAID EXPENSES 

Prepaid long-term expenses (if any) are recognized at cost less any accumulated impairment 

losses. 
 

4.23 DISCONTINUOUS OPERATIONS 

It is one of the components of the Company's business (the Group) whose operations and cash 

flows can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Company (the Group), which are: 

- Represents a separate major line of business or geographic area of consolidated operations. 

- Part of a single coordinated plan to eliminate a separate major line of business or geographic 

area of operations. Or 

- A subsidiary company acquired exclusively for the purpose of resale. 
 

 

4.24 SEGMENTS REPORTS 

- The business segment is a group of assets, operations, or facilities: 

1) Conducts its business in commercial activities through which it is possible to generate 

revenues and incur expenses including revenues and expenses related to transactions with 

other components of the Group; 
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2) The results of its operations are analyzed on an ongoing basis by the Chief Operating 

Officer in order to make decisions related to resource allocation and performance 

evaluation; and  

3) On which accurate information is available separately. 

- The geographical segment provides services within a specific economic environment that is 

exposed to risks and returns that differ from operating sectors in other economic 

environments. Since the Group operates in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia only through one 

activity, no geographical segments are presented in these consolidated financial statements. 
 

 

5. SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS  

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and 

assumptions that affect the amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities disclosed and disclosure of 

contingent liabilities as at the reporting date. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates may result 

in results that may require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets or liabilities that will 

be affected in future periods. 

These estimates and assumptions are based on experience and other factors that are believed to be 

reasonable under the circumstances and are used to judge the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that 

are difficult to obtain from other sources. Core estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an on-going 

basis. An audit of the accounting estimates is recorded in the period in which the estimates are revised or in 

the period of the revision and future periods if the revised estimates affect current and future periods. 

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions have been made which have a material 

impact on the financial statements as following: 
 

5-1 Judgments 
 

5.1.1 Control Determination 

- Determining the Group’s control depends on the way decisions are made related to the related 

activities and the Group’s rights in the investee companies. The Group owns less than 50% of the 

voting rights of its subsidiary company, while with the increase in its ownership share during the 

year 2021, some changes were made in the Company’s board of directors. The investee then 

achieves control over the subsidiary company, as the Company has a presence and representation 

that gives it the authority to direct the related activities of the investee company, and consequently 

the other shareholders do not have sufficient voting rights to enable them to bypass the group’s 

directives. Accordingly, the Group consolidated the subsidiary invested company, which fulfilled 

what was mentioned as part of the Group's consolidated financial statements. 
 
 

5.1.2 Compliance with performance obligations  

- The Group has to assess each of its contracts with customers to determine whether performance 

obligations have been met over time or at a specific time in order to determine the appropriate 

method of income recognition. The Group assessed this based on the sales and purchase 

agreements it had entered into with the customers and the provisions of the relevant laws and 

regulations . 

- The Group has chosen to apply the input method in the transaction price distribution for the 

performance obligation where the revenue is recognized based on the Group's efforts to meet 

the performance obligation, providing the best reference to the income actually earned . 
 

5.1.3 Determine transaction prices  

- The Group is required to set transaction prices in relation to each of its contracts with 

customers. In making such a judgment, the Group evaluates the impact of any variable price in 

the contract as a result of discounts or fines, the presence of any significant financing 

component in the contract and any non-monetary price in the contract. 
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5.1.4 Classification of investment properties 

- The Group determines whether the property qualifies as investment property under International 

Accounting Standard No. (40) investment properties. In making such a judgment, the Group 

considers whether the property generates substantial cash flows that are independent of other assets 

held by the Group. 
 

5.1.5 Operating lease commitments - the Group as lessor 

- The Group enters into commercial and retail lease contracts on its portfolio of investment 

properties. The Group has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the 

arrangements, that it retains all the risks and benefits of ownership of these properties and 

accordingly accounts for them as operating leases. 
 

5.1.6 Coronavirus (COVID-19) 

- The Group has reviewed the main sources of the uncertainty estimates disclosed in the recent 

consolidated financial statements in the context of the Coronavirus (Covid-19) epidemic. 

Management believes that, other than expected credit losses of financial assets, the impairment 

loss for non-financial assets and all sources for other uncertainty estimates remain the same as 

those disclosed in the annual consolidated financial statements. Management will continue to 

monitor the situation and any required changes will be reflected in the future reporting period - 

note (30). 
 

5-2 Estimates and assumptions  
 

5.2.1 Defined Benefit Programs  

- The cost of the defined benefit programs and the present value of the obligation are determined 

using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation includes many different assumptions that 

differ from actual developments in the future. This includes the determination of discount rates, 

future salary increases, mortality rates and the rate of movement of staff. As a result of the 

complexity and long-term nature of the valuation process, the commitment of specific benefits 

is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are examined at the 

reporting date. The most commonly used measurement criteria are the discount rate and the 

future salary increase.  

When determining the appropriate discount rate, management relies on market yield on high 

quality corporate bonds. Future salary increases depend on future inflation rates, seniority, 

promotion, supply and demand in the employment market. The mortality rate is based on the 

mortality tables available for specific countries. The extrapolation of mortality tables may 

change over time in response to population changes. Further details on staff benefit obligations 

are provided in the clarification (21). 

5.2.2 Expected credit losses 

Expected credit losses are measured as financial assets measured at amortized cost and requires 

the use of complex models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions and 

credit behavior. 

There are a number of important provisions required in the application of accounting standards 

- Define criteria for substantial increase in credit risk; 

- Selecting appropriate formats and assumptions to measure expected credit losses; 

- Determine the number and relative weight of future assumptions for each type of product 

and market 

- Create a pool of potential financial assets to measure air credit losses. 
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5.2.3  Productive useful life of property, equipment  & Investment properties 
The Group determines the estimated useful lives of property, equipment and investment 

properties for depreciation. This estimate is determined after taking into account the expected 

period of use of the asset and the natural damage. The management examines the estimated 

useful lives and the method of depreciation periodically to ensure that the method and duration 

of depreciation are consistent with the expected model of the economic benefits of these 

assets.and changes in depreciation expense are adjusted in current and future periods, if any, 
 

5.2.4  Impairment of non-financial assets 

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there are indications of impairment of the 

non-financial assets at each reporting date. Non-financial assets are selected to determine 

impairment in the event of indications that the carrying amounts cannot be recovered . 

When the value in use is calculated, the management estimates the future cash flows of the asset 

or unit of cash and selects the appropriate discount rate to calculate the present value of these 

cash flows. 
 

5.2.5  Going concern  

The management of the Group has assessed its ability to continue on the basis of the going 

concern and has concluded that it has the resources to continue its activity in the foreseeable 

future. In addition, management is not aware of any material uncertainty that may cast doubt on 

the Group's ability to continue in accordance with the going concern. Consequently, the 

financial statements have been prepared on the basis of the going concern. 
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6 PROPERTY & EQUIPMENT (net) 

 Lands Buildings 

Electrical 

appliances and air 

conditioners 

Vehicles Computers 
Furniture and 

fixture 
Tools 

Lease hold 

Improvements 

capital work 

in progress Total 

Cost:           

 At January 1, 2020 578 192 23  843 594 27  490 270 1  500 141  807 670  128 677 2  050 209  337 995  - 733 751 56  

Additions during the year - - 066 22  - 945 10  876 3  - - - 887 36  

Transfer to investment 

property 
(578 192 23)  (843 594 27)  - - - - - - 

- 
(421 787 50)  

Disposals during the year - - - (000 29)  (246 37)  (605 7)  (209 16)  - - (060 90)  

At December 31, 2020 - - 556 292 1  500 112  506 644  399 673 2  841 192  337 995  - 139 911 5  

Acquired assets - - - 482 117  - 076 98  - - - 558 215  

Additions during the year - - - - 036 40  121 7  - - 854 553  011 601  

At December 31, 2021  - - 556 292 1  982 229  542 684  596 778 2  841 192  337 995  854 553  708 727 6  

Accumulated depreciation            

At January 1, 2020 - 568 061 6  146 932  418 107  934 588  099 502 2  998 160  638 702  - 801 055 11  

 Depreciation for the year - 549 630  910 82  929 16  713 50  920 43  789 19  363 86  - 173 931  

Transfer to investment 

property 
- (117 692 6)  - - - - - - 

- 
(117 692 6)  

Accum. of disposals - - - (910 13)  (816 33)  (041 6)  (541 10)  - - (308 64)  

At December 31, 2020 - - 056 015 1  437 110  831 605  978 539 2  246 170  001 789  - 549 230 5  

Depreciation for the year - - 529 66  063 2  320 18  272 37  653 9  116 37  - 953 170  

Accum. Of acquired assets - - - 149 72  - 097 61  - - - 246 133  

At December 31, 2021  - - 585 081 1  649 184  151 624  346 638 2  899 179  117 826  - 748 534 5  

 Net assets           

At December 31, 2021  - - 971 210  333 45  390 60  250 140  942 12  220 169  854 553  960 192 1  

At December 31, 2020 - - 500 277  063 2  675 38  421 133  595 22  336 206  - 590 680  

Depreciation on property and equipment has been charged as follows: 
  Note 2021  2020 
Operating cost  (27) 449 60   - 
General and administrative expenses  (28) 504 110   307 114  
Discontinuous operations   -  865 816  

   953 170   172 931  
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7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES*- (NET): 

 
Note Lands 

 
Buildings  

Capital Work 

in Progress** 

 
Total 

Cost:         

At January 1, 2020  087 675 37   820 385 91   -  907 060 129  
Additions during the year  836 394 4   164 955 2   -  000 350 7  
Transfers from property and equipment  578 192 23   843 594 27   -  421 787 50  
At December 31, 2020  501 262 65   827 935 121   -  328 198 187  
Additions during the year  205 270 71   406 203 50   538 758   149 232 122  
Acquired real estate (10) 000 701 215   423 818 95   145 848 9   568 367 321  
At December 31, 2021   706 233 352   656 957 267   683 606 10   045 798 630  
Accumulated Depreciation:         
At January 1, 2020  -  186 653 27  -  186 653 27 
 Depreciation for the year  -  591 131 2   -  591 131 2  
Transfers from property and equipment  -  566 061 6   -  566 061 6  
At December 31, 2020  -  343 846 35  -  343 846 35 
 Depreciation for the year  -  722 430 2   -  722 430 2  
Transfer from property and equipment (10) -  287 730 4   -  287 730 4  
 At December 31, 2021   -  352 007 43   -  352 007 43  
Impairment:         
At January 1, 2020  -  -  -  - 
Impairment during the year  -  -  -  - 
At December 31, 2020  -  -  -  - 
Impairment during the year  613 66   -  -  613 66  
Impairment of property’s acquisition (10) -  973 690 4   -  973 690 4  
At December 31, 2021   613 66   973 690 4   -  586 757 4  
Net carrying value:         
At December 31, 2021   093 167 352   331 259 220   683 606 10   107 033 583  
At December 31, 2020  501 262 65   484 089 86  -  985 351 151  
(*)   Investment properties include 5 investment property mortgaged to some local banks against the facilities granted (Note No. 20). The carrying 

amount of them as on December 31, 2021 amounted to 212.5 million Saudi riyals. 

(**) The capital work in progress represents the renovations of investment properties, and these properties are being renewed by the management 

of the Group. 
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- Investment properties include real estate in the name of some of the shareholders of the subsidiary 

company (non-controlling interest), which has a carrying amount as of December 31, 2021G, amounting 

to 26.9 million Saudi riyals, and its fair value on that date is 28.9 million Saudi riyals, and the 

ownership is being transferred in the name of subsidiary company. 

- Investment properties are valued annually on the date of the financial statements at fair value, by an 

independent valuer who has a recognized and relevant professional qualification and has recent 

experience in the location and category of the investment properties being valued. The fair value was 

according to their assessment of the company's land and buildings amounted 667 million Saudi riyals 

(2020: amounted 209 million Saudi riyals), and the data for valuers this year were as follows: 
 

Name of the independent Valuators Membership 

No. 

Valuators qualification 

 Etqaan Real Estate Company and its partner 

Valuer: Nasser Khaled Al-Tukhaim 

1210001816 registered in the Saudi Authority for 

Accredited valuers (TAQEEM) 

 Etqaan Real Estate Company and its partner 

Valuer: Abdullah Muhammad Al-Ajmi 

1210001245 registered in the Saudi Authority for 

Accredited valuers (TAQEEM) 
 

- Based on the evaluations made by the evaluator as in On December 31, 2021, the Group did not record 

significant impairment losses in the carrying amount of investment properties, as the decrease in the 

value of investment properties amounted to 66,613 Saudi riyals, in addition to an amount of 4.69 million 

Saudi riyals, a decrease in the value of the investment properties acquired from the subsidiary. 
 

Investment property depreciation has been charged as follows: 

 Notes  2021  2020 

Operating cost (27)  722 430 2   295 693 1  
Discontinuous operations   -  296 438  

   722 430 2   591 131 2 
 

 

8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS - (NET): 

- The intangible assets is amounted 12 880 Saudi riyal in 31 Dec 2021 (amount 35 912 Saudi riyal 2020) 

which represented  in computer programs. 

 
 December 

31, 2021 

 December 

31, 2020 

Cost:     

At January 1  493 278   139 292  
Additional during the year  -  - 
Disposals during the year  -  (646 13)  
At December 31  493 278   493 278  
Accumulated Amortization:     
At January 1  581 242   819 204  
Amortization during the year  032 23   408 51  
Disposals during the year  -  (646 13)  
At December 31  613 265   581 242  
Net carrying amount as of December 31  880 12   912 35  

 

 

Intangible assets amortization has been charged as follows: 
 Note 2021  2020 

General and administrative expenses (28) 032 23   408 51  
  032 23   408 51  
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9 INVESTMENTS IN COMPANIES 

 
Note 

 December 

31, 2021 

 December 

31, 2020 

Investments in a subsidiary company (9-1)  -  - 
Investments in an associate company (9-2)  -  650 758 112  
Investments in joint ventures (9-3)  086 557 23   263 217 19  
Net investment balance   086 557 23   913 975 131  

 

9-1 Investments in subsidiaries: 

  Ownership %  Balance as in 

Company Name 
Country  

2021  2020  
December 
31, 2021 

 
December 
31, 2020 

International Hotel 
Company 

Kingdom Saudi 
Arabia 

-  -  -  - 

      -  - 
 

9-1-1 Investment movement in the International Hotel Company during the year: 
   December 

31, 2021 

 December 
31, 2020 

Balance at the beginning of the year   -  675 602  
The company's share of the profits for the year   -  973 359  
Eliminations during the year*   -  (648 962)  
Net investment balance at the end of the year   -  - 

(*) The Extraordinary General Assembly of the company decided in its meeting held on November 

30, 2020G. Approval of selling the company’s investment in the subsidiary company 

(International Hotels Company) with its and what it owes at the carrying value as on November 

30, 2020 to some shareholders. 
 

9-2 Investments in associates: 

  ownership % Balance as of 

Company Name Country 2021  2020 
December 
31, 2021 

 
December 
31, 2020 

Al-Aziza Company for 

Investment and Real Estate 

Development 

Kingdom 

Saudi Arabia 

-  42.5% -  650 758 112  

     -  650 758 112  
 

9-2-3 The following is the movement of investment in Al-Aziza Company for Investment and Real 

Estate Development during the year: 
  December 

31, 2021 
 December 

31, 2020 

Balance at the beginning of the year  650 758 112   - 
Additions during the year    407 706 107  
Disposals during the year  (000 100 5)   - 
The company's share of the income  044 557 11   495 089 5  
The company's share of other comprehensive income  027 45   (252 37)  
Net investment balance  721 260 119   650 758 112  
Additional investments at the end of the year  000 854 8   - 
Transferred to investments in subsidiaries **  (721 114 128)   - 
  -  650 758 112  
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(**) on the date December 23, 2021 The Group increased its stake in the Owner ship of Al-Aziza Company 

for Investment and Real Estate Development from 42.5% to 46.042%. This acquisition resulted in some 

changes in the board of directors of the investee company, and then achieved control over Al-Aziza 

Company for Investment and Real Estate Development by the company, where the company had a 

presence and representation it gives it the authority to direct the relevant activities of the investee. Due 

to the evidence that the determination of the consideration in the acquisition transaction was not subject 

to market forces, the acquired net assets were accounted for at their carrying amounts in the acquired 

entity on the date of acquisition, and no goodwill was recognized and the differences between that value 

and the consideration payable and agreed upon with the seller were recognised in the retained earnings, 

the differences amounted to 1,084,206 Saudi riyals, according to the opinion that are issued by Saudi 

Organization for Chartered and Professional Accountants (SOCPA) and supplementing the International 

Financial Reporting Standards issued on December 18, 2014., “Business combination under common 

control.” This previously held share has not been re-evaluated at fair value, as the authority’s opinion 

referred to has been applied when purchasing that share by . The obligation for that acquisition was 

recorded within the dues to related parties, as it is being paid in the subsequent period. 
 

9-3 Investments in joint ventures: 

 Note 2020  
Additional 

investment 
 

Share in the 

results of 

the joint 

venture 

 
Dividends 

received 
 2021 

Al Badiah 

Building Project 

(9-3-1) 042 312 13   -  642 204   (833 355)   851 160 13  

Tahlia Mall 

Project 

(9-3-2) 221 905 5   014 491 4   -  -  235 396 10  

  263 217 19   014 491 4   642 204   (833 355)   086 557 23  
 

(9-3-1) On January 21, 2018, the Group invested 50% in a joint venture with one of the shareholders, 

which is Establishment of real estate on the land equally owned by both parties. 
 
 

(9-3-2) On the 1st of November 2019, the Group invested 51% in a joint venture with an investor, which 

is a commercial center under construction in the northern Al-Ma'athar district in Riyadh. 
 

10 CONTROL OF THE SUBSIDIARY: 

Referring to Note No. (9) The company obtained control of Al-Aziza Company for Investment and Real Estate 

Development by the end of 2021 year. The main operations of that controlled company are real estate activity 

(purchasing lands to construct buildings on them and investing by selling or renting to others), the Group’s 

management estimated that if control had been achieved from January 1 2021, the Group’s revenues will be 

47.6 million Saudi riyals, and the results of the year 2021 for the subsidiary were not included in the 

consolidated statement of profit or loss because control was achieved at the end of the year. 
 

The following is the summarized financial position list for Al-Aziza Company for Investment and Real 

Estate Development: 

 December 

31, 2021 

 December 

31, 2020 

Non-current assets 238 106 328   567 783 259  
Current assets 394 620 9   894 109 13  
Non-current Liabilities (440 893)   (470 077 1)  
Current Liabilities (731 219 56)   (521 501 6)  
Property rights 461 613 280   470 314 265  
The company's share in equity before the additional share 42.5%   42.5%  
Carrying amount of the investment 721 260 119   650 758 112  
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The following is the summarized income statement for Al-Aziza Company for Investment and Real 

Estate Development: 
 

  December 

31, 2021 

 December 

31, 2020 

Revenues  642 741 28   872 204 22  
Operating cost  (304 514 4)   (547 122 2)  
General and administrative expenses  (906 078 3)   (655 137 4)  
Other income/(expenses)  888 797 6   (162 455 3)  
Profit before zakat  320 946 27   508 489 12  
Zakat  (276 753)   (225 514)  
Net profit for the year  044 193 27   283 975 11  
Total comprehensive income for the year  947 105    (651 87)  
The company's share of the year's income  044 557 11   495 089 5  
The company's share of other comprehensive income for the 

year 
 027 45   (252 37)  

 

11 INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER 

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME: 

 
Notes December 

31, 2021 

 December 

31, 2020 

Investments in companies listed on the stock market (11-1) -  130 131 30  

Investments in unlisted companies (11-2) 093 470 10   580 428 1  

  093 470 10   710 559 31  
 

11.1 Investments in companies listed on the stock market * 

Company Name 2021  2020  
December 

31, 2021 

 December 

31, 2020 

 Ownership %     

Umm Al-Qura Cement Company -  1.28%  -  936 199 21  

Southern Region Cement Company -  12.%  -  399 466 1  

Saudi Real Estate Company -  0014.%  -  778 052 6  

Al Rajhi Bank -  000004.%  -  000 736  

Sulaiman Al Habib Hospital -  000017.%  -  017 676  

     -  130 131 30  
 

(*) During the year, the Group sold its investments carried at fair value through other comprehensive 

income, with their original value 13 821 059 Saudi riyals and the value of its sale amounted to     

30 306 351 Saudi riyals. The profit achieved on the sale of these investments, amounting to          

16 485 292 Saudi riyals (070 16 310: December 31, 2020) was reclassified from other reserves to 

retained earnings. The movement of investments in equity instruments carried at fair value through 

other comprehensive income was as follows: 
 

  
December 

31, 2021 

 December 

31, 2020 

Beginning of the year  130 131 30   620 420 22  
Investments acquired during the year  -  451 344  
Change in the fair value of investments during the year  222 175   059 366 7  
Proceeds from the sale of investments  (352 306 30)   - 
  -  130 131 30  
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11.2 Investments in other companies not listed in the stock market 

Company Name 2021  2020  
December 

31, 2021 
 

December 

31, 2020 

 
 Ownership 

percentage 

    

United Financial House Company 9,51%  9,51%  000 500 5   000 500 5  
Hittin Union Real Estate Company 15%  -  803 755 9   - 
Deduct Impairment       (710 785 4)   (420 071 4)  

     093 470 10   580 428 1  
  

-  The investment appears at cost due to the inability to measure its fair value reliably, as it is not traded in the 

public market. 

* The movement of the impairment in the value of investments in companies not listed in the 

financial market is as follows: 
 Balance in 

1/1/2021 

 Formed during 

the year 

 Used during 

the year 

 Balance 

in12/31/2021 

 4 071 420  714 290  -  4 785 710 

 

12 INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 
 

 
Note December 

31, 2021 
 

December  

31, 2020 

Investments in equity instruments at fair value through 

profit and loss - current 
(12-1) 242 549 16   - 

Investments in equity instruments at fair value through 

profit and loss - non-current 
(12-2) 816 321 6   - 

  058 871 22   - 

 

12.1 Investments in equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss - current 

 

December 

31, 2021 
 

December 

 31, 2020 

Beginning of the year -  - 

Additions during the year 21 599 509  - 

Disposals during the year (231 324 5)   - 

Unrealized gains on financial investments at fair value through 

profit or loss 

964 273 
 

- 

 242 549 16   - 
 

The balance of investments is represented as in December 31, 2021, mainly in an investment portfolio 

that is managed by a local financial company, where investment is made in money market and trading 

tools. The investments were measured on the basis of fair value, in accordance with the valuation 

levels in International Standard No. (13) and the requirements of International Financial Reporting 

Standard No. (9), and the Group classified these investments upon the initial application of IFRS 9 as 

being measured at fair value through profits and losses according to the prices announced in the Saudi 

trading market, as they are acquired for the purpose of trading. The unrealized profits in 2021 

amounted to 273 964 Saudi riyals, and the realized profits as a result of the sale in 2021 amounted to 

254 597 Saudi riyals. 
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12.2 Investments in equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss - non-current 

 

December 

31, 2021 
 

December 

31, 2020 

Beginning of the year -  - 

Investments acquired during the year 619 077 16   - 

 619 077 16   - 

The balance is represented as in December 31, 2021 mainly in an investment portfolio with Riyad 

Capital. The investments were measured on the basis of fair value, in accordance with the valuation 

levels in International Standard No. (13) and the requirements of International Financial Reporting 

Standard No. (9), and the Group classified these investments upon the initial application of IFRS 9 as 

being measured at fair value. Through profits and losses - not traded according to the prices announced 

in the Saudi trading market, as they are not acquired for the purpose of trading. 

 

13 TRADE RECEIVABLES - (NET):      

 
   

December 

31, 2021 
 

December 

31, 2020 

 Trade receivables (receivables of lessees)   193 213 5   271 513  

 Deferred revenue   (736 494 2)   - 

 Deduct      

 Allowance for expected credit losses*   (744 479)   (749 437)  

    713 238 2   522 75  
 

The movement of the decrease in the value of trade receivables is as follows: 

 Balance in 

1/1/2021 
 Performed   

Additional from 

acquisition 
 

Balance in 

12/31/2021 

 749 437   -  995 41   744 479  

 

 As in December 31, the aging of accounts receivable is as follows: 
 

 

(not due) 

Due past a 

period of 1-60 

days 

Due past a 

period of 61-

120 days 

Due past a 

period of 121-

180 days 

Due past a 

period of 180 

days 

Total 

 
- 270 144 2  796 44  643 91  749 437  457 718 2  

 

14 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

- Related parties represent the Group's shareholders, senior management employees in the Group, and the 

facilities owned or managed by these parties, as well as the facilities that exercise joint control or 

substantial influence over these parties. Transactions with relevant authorities are carried out during the 

normal business cycle through contracts approved by the management. The following is a summary of 

the most important transactions that took place between the Group and related parties during the year, as 

well as a statement of the related parties’ net balances in December 31: 
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Nature of the 

transaction 

Nature of the relation Related party Transaction volume 

During the fiscal year 

Balance 

31.12.2021 

Balance 

31.12.2020 

2021 2020 Debit 

Credit) 

Debit 

Credit) 

International 

Hotel company* 

Affiliate company Hotel rental of the Company 3 500 000 667 291  - - 

Shareholders Company's shareholders Selling an investment in a subsidiary - 675 602  - - 

Saleh Al-

Haqbani 

Shareholder in the associate 

company "currently affiliated" 

Purchasing an additional share in the 

investment of an associate company 

from the shareholder 

(8 854 000) - (8 854 000) - 

  Acquisition of an investment in an 

associate company 

- 408 706 107    

  Selling a branch of the company - 547 425 1    

  Capital increase - 000 000 198    

  Consensual reserve formation - 000 000 40    

  Selling an investment in an associate 

company 

- 519 263    

other Shareholders of the associate 

company "currently affiliated" 

vicarious payment 157 152 - (433 13)  - 

Due to related parties - current   ( (000 854 8  - 

Due to related parties - non-current   (433 13)  - 
 

(*) on the date January 1, 2021, the company signed a lease contract for the company’s hotel with the International Hotels Company “affiliate company” for a 

period of 3 years with an annual rental value of 3.5 million Saudi riyals. An annual lease of  2 million Saudi riyals, provided that the lease period for this 

contract starts from the first of January 2022 and ends on December 31, 2026. 
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- Benefits, rewards and compensation of senior management personnel: 
The Group's key management personnel consist of key management personnel who have the 

authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group. 

 

  2021   

  

Board of 

Directors 

 Key 

management 

personnel 

and senior 

executives 

 Members of 

committees 

emanating from 

the board of 

directors 

 

Total 

Salaries and wages  -  560 850   -  560 850  

Allowances  69 000  -  000 18  000 87  

Rewards  300 000  -  000 75  375 000 

 

  2020   

  

Board of 

Directors 

 Key 

managemen

t personnel 

and senior 

executives 

 
Members of 

committees 

emanating from the 

board of directors 

 

Total 

Salaries and 

wages 
 -  373 045 1   -  373 045 1  

 

(*) The amounts paid by the senior executives of the subsidiary company during the year 2021G 

amounted to 212 367 Saudi riyals and were not recorded in the consolidated statement of profits 

or losses due to the achievement of control by the end of 2021. 

 

15 ADVANCE PAYMENTS AND OTHER DEBIT BALANCES 
 

  
December 

31, 2021 
 

December 

31, 2020 

  Consolidated  Not (37) 

Prepaid Expenses  262 35   850 48  

Employee’s Deposits  093 439   504 50  

Advance payment suppliers  951 171   - 

Zakat and Income Authority - Value Added Tax  810 403   - 

Other  202 647   820 80  

  318 697 1   174 180  
 

16 CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 

   
December 

31, 2021 
 

December 

31, 2020 

   Consolidated  Not (37) 

Cash on hand   452 8   - 

Cash at banks - current accounts   396 107 14   506 812 13  

   848 115 14   506 812 13  
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17 SHARE CAPITAL : 

The company's share capital is 200 million Saudi riyals as on December 31, 2021 from 20 million ordinary 

shares (December 31, 2020: 200 million ordinary shares out of 20 million ordinary shares), the value of 

each share is 10 Saudi riyals. 

Based on the decision of the Extraordinary General Assembly of the company in its meeting held on 

November 30, 2020, the capital was increased to become the company’s capital, after the amendment, at 

200 million Saudi riyals, through the credit balance to shareholders, divided into 20 million ordinary 

shares, the value of the share is 10 Saudi riyals. This increase is on December 22, 2020. 

 

18 STATUTORY RESERVE: 

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Law in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and the 

company’s articles of association, 10 % of the annual net profit to form the statutory reserve of the 

company, and the ordinary general assembly may decide to stop this set-up when the mentioned reserve 

reaches30% of the paid up capital, bearing in mind that this reserve is not available for distribution. 

According to the company’s articles of association, the general assembly may decide to form other reserves 

to the extent that achieves the interest of the company or ensures the distribution of fixed profits as much as 

possible to the shareholders. 
 

19 OTHER RESERVES: 

 Note 2021  2020 

Consensual reserve (19-1) 000 000 40   000 000 40  

Fair value reserve for investments in equity instruments at fair 

value through other comprehensive income 

(11-1) -  070 310 16  

Actuarial losses for employee benefit obligations (21) (238 586)   (520 489)  

  762 413 39   550 820 55  
 

19-1 Conventional reserve: 

The Extraordinary General Assembly decided in 28/12/2020 approved the recommendation of the 

company’s board of directors in its meeting held on 24/12/2021 by forming a consensual reserve to 

be financed from the balance due from the shareholders in the amount of40million Saudi riyals, 

according to the company's articles of association, the ordinary general assembly, based on the 

proposal of the board of directors, to avoid 5% From the net profit to form an agreement reserve 

allocated for a specific purpose or purposes. 

20 BANK FACILITIES: 

  
December 

31, 2021 
 

December 

31, 2020 

Riyad Bank Loans - The Parent Company  676 859 45   - 

Riyad Bank Loans - Subsidiary  715 460 51   - 

Arab Bank Loans - The Parent Company  282 565 44   - 

Total loans  673 885 141   - 

Deferred benefits  (418 199 3)   - 

Total Loans  255 686 138   - 
 

- The financing interest charged to the income statement for the fiscal year ended on 31 Dec 2021M 

amount 482 325 SR (Note No.30). 
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These loans appear on the statement of financial position as follows: 
 

  
December 

 31, 2021 
 

December 

 31, 2020 

Short term loans  16 013438  - 

Long-term loans- Current portion    18 072 357  - 

Total non-current loans  34 085 795  - 

Non-current portion of long-term loans   104 600 460  - 

Total Loans  138 686 255  - 

 

Riyadh Bank: 

1. Parent Company Facilities 

- On the date December 29, 2020 The Company signed a credit facility contract with Riyadh 

Bank in the amount of 62 million Saudi riyals in return for a variable interest (SIBOR plus a 

profit margin), for the purpose of expanding in real estate investment, and the company 

renewed the facility contract on November 17, 2021. 

- The exploiter of these facilities reached until December 31, 2021, an amount of 44.5 million 

Saudi riyals in the form of 6 Murabaha. 

- This financing was obtained with the following guarantees: 

 Promissory note in favor of Riyadh Bank in the amount of 32.5 million Saudi riyals 

signed by the company's management. 

 Mortgage registered in favor of the bank for the number3 investment properties of the 

company with a carrying value of 91.8 million Saudi riyals - Note No. (7). 
 

2. Subsidiary’s facilities 

- On the date November 23, 2021 The subsidiary company signed two credit facilities contracts 

(an Islamic financing agreement) with Riyadh Bank in the amount of 50 million Saudi riyals 

in return for a variable interest (SIBOR plus a profit margin), for the purpose of expanding in 

real estate investment. 

-  The exploiter of these facilities reached until December 31, 2021 AD, an amount of 50 

million Saudi riyals in the form of Murabaha. 

- This financing was obtained with the following guarantees: 

 Promissory note in favor of Riyadh Bank in the amount of59.5 million Saudi riyals 

signed by the company's management. 

 Mortgage registered in favor of the bank for the number1 Investment property of the 

subsidiary company with a carrying value of 58.7 million Saudi riyals - Note No. (7). 

 

Arab National Bank: 

- On the date October 3, 2021, the company signed a credit facility contract with the Arab 

National Bank in the amount of 40 million Saudi riyals to be paid in semi-annual installments 

for a period of 7 years, in addition to 6 million Saudi riyals, a short-term Saudi facility in 

exchange for variable interest (SIBOR plus a profit margin), for the purpose of expansion in real 

estate investment. 

- The exploiter of these facilities reached until December 31, 2021 AD, an amount of 43.9 million 

Saudi riyals in the form of 4 Murabaha. 

- This financing was obtained with the following guarantees: 

 Promissory note in favor of Arab National Bank in the amount of40 million Saudi riyals 

signed by the company's management. 
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 The registered mortgage in favor of the bank for one of the company’s investment properties 

located in the Olaya district, Riyadh, with a carrying value of62 million Saudi riyals - Note 

No. (7). 

 Deposit annual rental returns in the company’s account with the bank in the amount of 9 

million Saudi riyals. 

 

21 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS OBLIGATIONS: 

- The entity operates a defined benefit plan (as defined in IAS No.)19) where it provides a lump sum 

bonus when the employee leaves the Group, in line with the current labor law in the Kingdom of 

Saudi Arabia. 

- The amount of the entitlement is calculated according to the labor laws in the Kingdom and this is 

based on the years of service and the salary on the date of departure. The plan and its obligations are 

therefore more sensitive to changes in future salary increases, future withdrawal rates, and the 

discount rate used in evaluating the obligations. 

- The Group is not required to fund the plan, so the Company has chosen to honor the payment of 

benefits as they fall due. 

- The plan obligations were assessed using the projected unit credit method in accordance with the 

requirements of IAS No.19. Since the amount and timing of accrued benefits in the future is 

currently unknown, assumptions have been made to value obligations related to past service, and 

separately from obligations related to the cost of accruing in the future. These assumptions have been 

derived using methodologies consistent with the requirements of IAS No. 19). 

- Any changes in the assumptions over time reflect changes in financial, economic and demographic 

conditions. When future experiences do not match the applicable assumptions, that change is 

recognized in the statement of other comprehensive income in future financial years. 

 

21.1 Movement in the net defined benefit obligation:   

  
Note 

December 

31, 2021 
 

December 

31, 2020 

 Balance in January 1  982 319   665 985  

 Current service cost  936 86  050 77  

 Interest cost  288 8  396 48  

 Actuarial losses/(profits)  745 141  117 230  

 Paid benefits  (147 190)   (988 173)  

 Due to acquired subsidiary during the 

year 

(10) 007 880   - 

 Reverse the share of the subsidiary sold  -  (258 847)  

 Balance in December 31  1 246 811  982 319  

 

21.2 Actuarial Assumptions: 

  The assessment of the defined benefit obligations of the employees’ end of service benefit 

plan has been prepared with the assistance of the company’s actuary using the following 

main assumptions: 
 

  December 

31, 2021 
 

December 

31, 2020 

 Discount rate 2.5-3.2%  4.91% 

 Expected rate of salary increase 1-2%  3% 

 Assumed retirement age (in years) 60  60 

 death rate A67/70ULT  A67/70ULT 
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21.3 Sensitivity Analysis: 
  The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the key weighted 

assumptions is: 

 

 Discount rate  Salary inflation 

 Basis decrease 

by 1% 

Increase 

 by 1% 

 Basis increase 

by1% 

decrease 

by1% 

December 31, 2021  2.5-3.2% 1 247 561 1 061 696  1-2% 1 246 586 1 060 846 

December 31, 2020 4.91% 368 696 278 616  3% 368 818 277 816 
 

- The above sensitivity analyzes are based on a change in the assumption, with all other 

assumptions held constant. In practice, this is unlikely, as changes in some assumptions may 

be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant 

actuarial assumptions, the same method (the present value of the defined benefit obligation 

calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) was 

applied when calculating the defined benefit obligation recognized in the statement of 

financial position. 
 

22 ACCRUALS AND OTHER CREDIT BALANCES 

 
  

December 

31, 2021 
 

December 

31, 2020 

   Consolidated  Note (37) 

 Rental income received in advance  127 854 13   506 542 8  

 Accrued expenses  874 644   808 89  

 Payables  438 197   - 

 Value Added Tax  227 626   404 689  

 Advance Payments from accounts receivables  240 823 1   - 

 Deposits from others  552 664   - 

 Other  197 816   119 670  

   655 626 18   837 991 9  
 

23 EARNINGS PER SHARE: 
 

- Basic and diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit for the year related to 

the ordinary shareholders of the company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 

outstanding during the year. 

- The number of outstanding shares has been adjusted to the comparative figures presented 

retrospectively in accordance with the requirements of International Accounting Standard No.33) 

“Earnings per share” given that a large part of the amount of the capital increase that took place 

at the end of 2020 (note 17) was made through the credit balance to shareholders, which in 

essence is additional financing since it is related to the investment properties that were added at 

the beginning of the company, which is the activity her main. 

- The following table reflects the income and shares data used in calculating basic and diluted 

earnings per share: 

 Continuous Operations 

  2021  2020 

Net profit for the year attributable to the shareholders of the 

company 
 165 614 23   111 836 13  

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (shares)  000 000 20   000 000 20  

Basic earnings per share (in Saudi riyals per share)  1,18  0,69 
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 Continuous and Discontinuous Operation 
 

  2021  2020 

Net profit for the year attributable to the shareholders of the 

company 
 165 614 23   917 497 16  

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (per share)  000 000 20   057 348 15  

Basic earnings per share (in Saudi riyals per share)  1,18  1,07 

- There is no convertible obligation to equity instruments, so diluted earnings per share are no 

different from basic earnings per share. 

 

24  ZAKAT: 

 

December 

31, 2020 
 

December 

31, 2021 
  24.1 Movement of Zakat Provision: 

541 155   878 301    At the beginning of the year 

878 301   322 754    Provision of the year 

-  564 757    Provision of the acquired subsidiary 

(541 155)   (878 301)    Utilized Provision 

878 301   886 511 1    At the end of the year 

 

24-2 Zakat Status 
 

1: Banan Real Estate Company (the parent company) 
 

Years ago 2015 

- The company submitted its returns for those years and obtained a temporary certificate, 

and the company did not return any zakat assessments for those years. 
 

Years from 2015 to 2017  

- The company submitted its zakat returns to the Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority and 

paid zakat obligations from its point of view for those years. 

- The company obtained Zakat assessments for the years from the year2015G until 2017G 

with a total amount of 1,953,924 Saudi riyals. The company objected to the General 

Secretariat of the Tax Committees on some amounts of those assessments, amounting to 

1,164,343 Saudi riyals during the statutory period, and the remaining amounts were paid. 

The General Secretariat of the Tax Committees has not yet issued its decision. 
 

Year of 2018 

- The company submitted its returns for that year and obtained a temporary certificate, and 

the company did not return any zakat assessments for those years. 

- The Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority checked that period without any differences. 
 

Year 2019 & 2020 

- The company submitted the zakat declaration from its point of view in accordance with 

the executive regulations for levying zakat for those years and obtained a temporary 

certificate from the Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority, valid until April 30, 2022. And no 

final zakat assessments have been received from the Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority 

for those years yet. 
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2: Al-Aziza Company for Investment and Real Estate Development (the subsidiary 

company) 

Years ago 2015 

- The subsidiary company submitted its returns for those years and obtained a certificate, 

and the company did not receive any zakat assessments for those years. 
 

Year of 2016 

- The Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority checked that period, and all related differences 

were paid. 
 

Years from 2017 to 2020  

- The company submitted the zakat declaration from its point of view in accordance with 

the executive regulations for levying zakat for those years and obtained a temporary 

certificate from the Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority, valid until April 30, 2022. And no 

final zakat assessments have been received from the Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority 

for those years yet. 

 

25 DISCONTINUOUS OPERATIONS: 
 

 Note 2021  2020 

Profit non-continuous operations for the branch of technology 

and information technology 

25-1 -  410 107  

Profit from discontinued operations for hotel activities - Voyage 

Hotel 

25-2 -  396 554 2  

  -  806 661 2  
 

25-1 profit from discontinued operations for the technology and information technology branch 

- Based on the decision of the Extraordinary General Assembly of the company in its meeting 

held on November 30, 2020G selling one of the company’s branches, which is the 

technology branch, at the carrying value of some shareholders. 

- The branch was not previously classified as held for sale or as a discontinued operation. The 

statement of comparative profit or loss and other comprehensive income has been 

reclassified to show the discontinued operation separately from the continuing operations. 
 

           Technology and Information Technology Branch 

  period 

Net profit for the period for Discontinued 

operations 

 From 1.1.2021 

To 31.12.2021  

 From 1.1.2021 

To 30.11.2021  

Revenues  -  4 228 320 

Expenses  -  (4 120 910) 

Profit before zakat  -  107 410 

zakat  -  - 

Profit from discontinued operation  -  107 410 

 

Technology and Information Technology Branch 

  period 

Cash flows from Discontinued Operations  From 1.1.2021 

To 31.12.2021  

 From 1.1.2021 

To 30.11.2021  

Cash flows from operating activities  -  656 440  

Cash flows from investing activities  -  (948 32)  

Cash flows from financing activities  -  (363 255)  

  -  345 152  
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25-2 Profit from discontinued operations for hotel activities - Voyage Hotel 

 On the date On December 1, 2020, the company signed a lease contract for the Voyage Hotel 

owned by it for the International Hotels Company for a period of 3 years, as the activity of 

operating and managing the Voyage Hotel was excluded and then leased to others instead of 

operating it. 
 

  Hotel Activities - Voyage Hotel 

  period 

Net profit for the period for Discontinued 

operations 

 From 1.1.2021 

To 31.12.2021  

 From 1.1.2021 

To 30.11.2021  

Revenues  -  133 147 9  

Expenses  -  (737 592 6)  

Profit before zakat  -  396 554 2  

zakat  -  - 

Profit from discontinued operations  -  396 554 2  
 

26 REVENUES:  

2020  2021    

227 489 12   610 901 18    Real estate rental income  

227 489 12   610 901 18      

 

27 COST OF REVENUE: 
 

2020  2021  Notes  

295 693 1   722 430 2   (7) Investment property depreciation  

-  449 60   (6) Depreciation of property and equipment  

-  994 102    Other  

295 693 1   165 594 2       

 

28 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES: 
 

 Notes 2021  2020 

 Salaries, wages, etc  107 500 1   726 856 1  

 Professional fees and advice  866 164 1   170 357  

 Board of Directors' remuneration and allowances  000 462   - 

 Fines and compensation  600 103   - 

 Car expenses  108 2   976 5  

 General Maintenance  700 12   149 3  

 Electricity and telephone  951 39   833 32  

 Governmental fees  935 250   660 119  

 Short term rental  000 80   812 29  

 Stationery and prints  105 67   967 14  

 Depreciation of property and equipment (6) 504 110   307 114  

 Depreciation of intangible assets (8) 032 23   408 51  

 Others  421 41   942 13  

   329 858 3   950 599 2  
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29 OTHER INCOME/(EXPENSES) 
 

 

    2021  2020 

 Gain on disposal of property and equipment  -  496 12  

 Revenue from Commissions  534 261   000 25  

 Other  -  986 21  

   534 261   482 59  

 

30 FINANCING COSTS 

 Notes 2021  2020 

Bank facility benefits (20) 325 482   - 

Defined benefit obligation interest (21-1) 288 8   396 48  

  613 490   396 48  

 

31 CAPITAL ENGAGEMENT 
 

 As in December 31, 2021 The value of the capital commitments amounted to 19,652,215 Saudi 

riyals, an amount of 12,946 000 Saudi riyals was executed, and the unexecuted part amounted to 6, 

706, 215 Saudi riyals. 

 

32 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS 
 

 In addition to the amounts taken into account in the components of the financial statements, the 

following contingent liabilities are found in 31 Dec2021: 
 

Operating lease commitments 

1:The Group as a Lessee 

The Group has a number of short-term operating lease contracts as administrative headquarters, 

and the following are the company's obligations under these contracts:: 

 

 December 

31,2021 
 

December 

31,2020 

within one year 
60 000  60 000 

Balance as in December 31 
60 000  60 000 

 

2:The Group as a lessor 

The company has a number of operating lease contracts in several cities in the Kingdom, and the 

following are the company's assets under those contracts:: 

 

 
December 

31, 2021 
 

December 

31, 2020 

Within one year 840 108 16   535 845 16  

After a year and less than five years 095 267 24   278 393 34  

More than five years 219 445 2   166 99  

Balance as in December 31 154 821 42   979 337 51  
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33 DIVIDEND 
 

- During the Ordinary General Assembly meeting held on October 21, 2021, the shareholders 

decided to distribute dividends of 5 million Saudi riyals (dividends per share of 0.25 Saudi riyals - 

twenty-five halala) for the financial period ending on June 30, 2021, and these dividends have 

been paid on November 4, 2021. 

- The Board of Directors decided, during its meeting held on March 21, 2022, to recommend to the 

General Assembly of shareholders the distribution of cash dividends to shareholders at the rate of     

0.30 Saudi riyals per share for the results of the second half of the year 2021. 

 

34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS: 

34.1 Measurement of the fair value of financial instruments: 

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be sold, or a liability settled, between willing 

parties on an arm's length transaction at the measurement date. Within the definition of fair 

value, there is an assumption that the company is a going concern company where there is no 

intention or condition to materially reduce the volume of its operations or conduct a transaction 

on negative terms. 
 

A financial instrument is considered to be listed in an active market if the quoted prices are 

readily and regularly available from a foreign exchange dealer, broker, industry Group, pricing 

service or regulatory body and that these prices represent market transactions that have actually 

and regularly occurred on a commercial basis. 

When measuring fair value, the Company uses observable market information whenever 

possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in the fair value hierarchy based on the 

inputs used in the valuation methods as follows: 

 The level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities that 

can be obtained at the measurement date. 

 The level 2:Entries other than listed prices that are included in the level1 It is observable to 

assets or liabilities directly (such as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices). 

 The level 3: Inputs for assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market 

information (unobservable inputs). 

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of 

the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized entirely in the same 

level of the fair value hierarchy where the lowest level of the input is significant to the entire 

measurement. 

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the 

reporting period in which the change has occurred. During the periods ending in December 

31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, there were no transfers between the Level 1 and Level 2 

fair value levels. 

Where the company's financial instruments are grouped according to the historical cost 

principle, except for investments and derivative financial instruments that are carried at fair 

value, differences may arise between the carrying value and fair value estimates. 

Management believes that the fair values of the Company's financial assets and liabilities are 

not materially different from their carrying values. 

The table below shows the carrying values and fair values of financial assets and financial 

liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value 

information for financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value if 

the carrying value reasonably approximates the fair value. 

 

34.2 Measurement of the fair value of financial instruments: 
 

The table below shows the carrying values and fair values of financial assets and financial 

liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value 

information for financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value if the 

carrying value reasonably approximates the fair value. 
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December 31, 2021  

Carrying value 
 

 Fair value 

through 

comprehensive 

income 

Fair value 

through profit 

or loss 

Amortized 

Cost 
Total 

Financial Assets     

Investments in equity 

instruments 
093 470 10  058 871 22  - 

33 341 151  

Trade receivables - - 713 238 2  713 238 2  

Other debit balances - - 295 086 1  295 086 1  

Cash and cash equivalents - - 848 115 14  848 115 14  

 093 470 10  058 871 22  17 440 856  50 782 007  

 Fair value 

through 

comprehensive 

income 

Fair value 

through profit 

or loss 

Amortized 

Cost 
Total 

Financial Liability     

Bank loans and facilities - - 138 686 255  138 686 255  

Due to related parties - - 433 867  8  433 867  8  

Receivables and other credit 

balances 

- 
- 

061 323 2  061 323 2  

 - - 149 876 749  149 876 749  

 

December 31, 2020 

Carrying value 
 

 Fair value 

through 

comprehensive 

income 

Fair value 

through profit 

or loss 

Amortized 

Cost 
Total 

Financial Assets     

Investments in equity instruments 31 559 711  - - 31 559 711  

Trade receivables - -  75 522   75 522  

Other debit balances - -  131 324   131 324  

Cash and cash equivalents - - 13 812 506  13 812 506  

 31 559 711  - 14 019 352  45 579 063 

 Fair value 

through 

comprehensive 

income 

Fair value 

through profit 

or loss 

Amortized 

Cost 
Total 

Financial Obligations     

Accruals and other credit balances - - 759 927 759 927 

 - - 759 927 759 927 
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34.3 Risk Management of Financial Instruments: 

Risks are part of the company's activities and are managed through a continuous mechanism 

that consists of identifying risks, evaluating them, and then following them up in accordance 

with other approved restrictions and controls. The process of risk management is essential to 

the company's ability to generate profits. Every employee of the company is responsible for 

managing the risks related to their job or responsibilities. The Company is exposed to market 

risk, commission rate risk, currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. 
 

34-4 Credit Risk: 

Credit risk is the risk that one party will not be able to meet its obligations to a financial 

instrument, causing financial losses to the other party. 

Credit risk is managed by requiring tenants to pay rents in advance. The credit quality of the 

lessee is assessed at the conclusion of the contract and the outstanding tenant receivables are 

monitored regularly. The total maximum exposure to credit risk in the company is the carrying 

value, which is as at the reporting date as follows: 
 

 
  

December 

31, 2021 
 

December 

31, 2020 

Cash and cash equivalents   848 115 14   506 812 13  

Trade receivables   713 238 2   522 75  

   561 354 16  028 888 13  

 Trade and other receivables are stated net of provision for impairment in trade receivables. 

 Cash balances held with banks with good credit ratings. 
 

34-5 Liquidity Risk: 

 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in obtaining funding 

to meet commitments associated with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result 

from the inability to sell a financial asset quickly at an amount close to its fair value. 

 Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring it periodically to ensure that sufficient funds are 

available through available bank facilities to meet any future commitments. 

 The company's lease terms stipulate that the amounts are to be paid in advance. 

 Below are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the end of the financial year. Amounts 

are presented gross and undiscounted and include estimated interest payments, excluding the effect 

of netting agreements (if any).   

 

 December 31, 2020 

 
Amount  

On demand or 

less than 1 year 
 

From1 year 

to 5 years 
 

more than 

5 years 

financial obligations        

Accruals and other credit balances 759 927  759 927  -  - 

 759 927  759 927  -  - 

 

 December 31, 2021 

 
Amount  

On demand 
or less than 

1 year 
 

From1 
year to 5 

years 
 

more than 5 
years 

Financial liability        

Undiscounted loans and bank facilities 673 885 141   35 627 542   72 667 315   33 590 816  

Due to related parties 433 867 8  433 867 8  -  - 

Accruals and other credit balances 061 323 2   061 323 2   -  - 

 153 076 167   036 818 46  72 667 315   33 590 816  
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34-6 Market Risk: 

 Market risk is the risk of fluctuation in a financial instrument due to changes in prices 

prevailing in the market such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and stock prices, 

which affects the company's income or the value of its financial instruments. 

 Market risk management aims to manage and control market risk exposures within 

acceptable parameters, while maximizing returns. 
 

34-7 Interest Rate Risk (Commissions): 

 Interest rate risk (commissions) represents the risks related to the effects of fluctuations in 

interest rates (commissions) prevailing in the market on the company's financial position and 

cash flows. 

 Interest risks (commissions) for the company arise mainly from loans and bank facilities, 

which are at interest rates that may be unknown, which are determined by the SIBOR rate in 

addition to the profit margin, and these changes in interest rates are monitored by the 

management on an ongoing basis. 
 

8–34 Currency Risk: 

 Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes 

in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises when future business transactions and 

recognized assets and liabilities are denominated in currencies other than the company's 

currency. 

 The Company is not exposed to significant foreign currency risk since all transactions are in 

Saudi Riyals. 

 The Company's management believes that its exposure to foreign currency risk is limited as 

the Company's currency is pegged to the US Dollar. 
 

9-34 Capital Management: 

It is the policy of the Board of Directors to maintain an adequate capital base in order to 

maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain the future development of its 

business. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital employed and the level of 

dividends distributed to shareholders. 

When managing capital, the company aims to: 

1- Protect the entity's ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide 

returns to shareholders and benefits to other stakeholders. 

2- Provide adequate return to shareholders. 
  

 The following is an analysis of the company's adjusted net debt to 

equity ratios at the end of the fiscal year: 

  December 31 

2021 

 December 31 

2020 

Total Liabilities  040 939 168   698 613 10  

Deduct: Cash at banks  (848 115 14)   (506 812 13)  

Adjusted Net Debt  154 823 192   (808 198 3)  

Total Equity  023 250 490   615 058 319  

Debt ratio as in December 31  0,31  - 

 

35 IMPORTANT EVENTS: 

It appeared at the end of the year2019 AD virus (Covid-19), spread in 2020, and is still present 

throughout the world until now, causing disruptions in commercial activities and economic activity. 

The company considers this outbreak to be a non-adjustable event in the statement of financial 

position. Since the situation is volatile and rapidly evolving, the company does not consider it 

possible to provide a quantitative estimate of the potential impact of this outbreak on the company in 

these financial statements. 
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36 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS: 

Management thinks not the existence of significant subsequent events since the end of the year that 

may affect the financial position of the company as shown in these financial statements. 
 

37 COMPARATIVE FIGURES: 

- The comparative figures for the non-consolidated financial statements are presented as in 

December 31, 2020, which cannot be compared, as it includes the financial position of the parent 

company only, the results of its business and its cash flows without its subsidiary company that 

was controlled by the end of 2021 AD - Note No. (10). 

- Some comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to this year's classification. 

 

38 APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

These consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 18 Shaban1443 

corresponding to 21 March 2022. 

            ======================================== 

 
 


